
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 
 

    
  
 
 
                      

                                                                               
   

REVISED  
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, March 5, 2013 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
              9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

 February 26, 2013 
 
   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
    
   Auditor  

a. Surplus of Personal Property  
Commissioners 
b. Contract w/DB Secure Shred, LLC for Document Destruction Services 
c. Letter to Cities & Franklin County Regarding Merging E911 Services 
d. Letter of Support to Benton County Emergency Services  
Facilities 
e. Purchase Authorization from Bargreen Ellingson for Convection Steamer  
f. Payment Authorization to Schindler Elevator Corporation for Elevator Repair Services 
Fairgrounds 
g. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101; Dept. 000   
Juvenile   
h.   Interagency Agreement w/Administrative Office of the Courts for Guest Trainer Services  
i.    Contract w/Sierra Electric, Inc. for Electrical Repair Services    
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138 
k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171   
Personnel 
l. Denial of County Claim CC2012-17   
m. Contract w/Sterling Infosystem, Inc. for Employment Screenings 
Public Works 
n. Authorization to Proceed w/Bid Process for Purchase of Metal TrafficSigns 
o. Authorization to Proceed w/Bid Process for Purchase of Refined Petroleum Projects  
p. Purchase Authorization from Crop Production Services for Herbicide Materials 
q. Payment Authorization to Lesco Electrical for Repairs @ Maintenance Yard 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Text Box
to view items in detail, please click on highlighted area.



Agenda – Board of County Commissioners 
March 5, 2013 
Page 2 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

r. Rental Authorization from Arrow Construction Supply of Crack Seal Machine     
s. Interlocal Cooperative Agreement w/City of Prosser for Bituminous Surface Treatment  
Sheriff 
t. Bid Award to Bob Barker Company, Inc. for Purchase of Inmate Supplies ~ CB-13-01 
u. Bid Award to Interline Brands, Inc. dba/Amsan Yakima for Purchase of Jail Chemical 

Supplies ~ CB-13-02 
v. Bid Award to Crown Paper & Janitorial, Inc. for Purchase of Paper & Glove Supplies ~ CB-13-03 
w. Bid Award to Blumenthal Uniforms and Equip. Co., Inc. for Purchase of Employee 

Uniforms - Class A and Other Related Items  ~ CB-13-04 
x. Bid Award to 911 Supply, LLC for Purchase of Employee Uniforms BDU/Blauer ~ CB-13-05 
 
Executive Session 
 
Potential Litigation ~ B Perry & R Lukson   
 

  Unscheduled Visitors 
   Board Assignment Update     
 
    

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, February 26, 2013, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
 
Present: Chairman Shon Small 
  Commissioner James Beaver  
  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; Human Services Manager Ed 
Thornbrugh; Public Works Manager Steve Becken; County Engineer Daniel Ford; Planning 
Manager Mike Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown; Clerk Josie Delvin; Jacki Lahtinen, Districts 
Court; Auditor Brenda Chilton; RJ Lott and Donna Hutchinson, Planning; DPA Steve Hallstrom; 
Van Pettey, Auditor’s Office; Erhiza Rivera, Treasurer’s Office.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of February 12, 2013 were approved. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “cc”, 
pulling “bb” (Line Item Transfer – Dept. 120) for discussion. Commissioner Delvin seconded 
and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Auditor  

a. Management Letter to the State Auditor’s Office 
Central Services 

b. Agreement w/Ciber, Inc. for Support of “Crimes” Software 
Commissioners 

c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 115  
District Court 

d. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0131-101, Dept. 000 
Facilities 

e. Contract w/River City Environmental, Inc. to Clean Grease Trap @ the Jail  
f.  Payment Authorization to Moon Security for Prosecuting Attorney’s Office Remodel 

Project 



 - 2 - 

Human Services 
g. Agreement w/Catholic Family & Child Service for 10-Yr Homeless Housing Plan Goals   
h. Renewal of Message Archiver Subscription from GovConnection 

Juvenile 
i. Contract w/Tri-Cities Chaplaincy for Counseling Services   
j. Contract w/Connections Consulting for Interpreter Services  
k. Contract w/J Azure for Attorney Services 
l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171  
m. Contract Amendment w/D Anderson for Civil Defense Representation  
n. Contract Amendment w/K Moreno for Civil Defense Representation 
o. Contract Amendment w/J Paulsen for Civil Defense Representation  
p. Contract Amendment w/D Campbell for Civil Defense Representation  

Personnel 
q. Appointment of March 2013 Employee of the Month  

Prosecuting Attorney 
r. Collective Bargaining Agreement w/WA State Council of County & City Employees, 

Representing Appraisers  
s. Collective Bargaining Agreement w/WA St Council of County & City Employees, 

Representing Crisis Response Unit  
t. Collective Bargaining Agreement w/Teamsters Local No. 839, Representing Sheriff’s 

Office Clerical  
u. Collective Bargaining Agreement w/American Federation of State, County & Municipal 

Employees, Representing Courthouse Union  
Public Works 

v. Purchase from Legacy Ford & Northend Truck Equipment Co. for  Ford Cab & Flatbed    
w. Purchase from Trailer Town for Flatbed Tilt Trailers 
x. Purchase from Rowand Machinery Co. for John Deere Front Loader   
y. Denial of the Formation of County Road Improvement District No. 23 
z. Equipment Maintenance Agreement w/Prosser Fire District #3 
aa. Lease Agreement w/Benton County Mosquito Control District  

WSU Cooperative Extension  
cc. Memorandum of Agreement w/Washington State University Extension 

 
Consent Agenda Item “bb” - Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120 
 
Keith Mercer said the line item transfer was needed to move to a different expenditure code so 
the expenditures matched how they were reported in the financial statements.  It was not an 
increase in the budget.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the Line Item Transfer as presented.  
Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   
 
Public Hearing – B.C. Water Company, LLC – Franchise Application 
 
Sue Schuetze said that B.C. Water Company, LLC filed a petition to continue a nonexclusive 
franchise to place water lines within County Road right of way in the Cottonwood vicinity in 



 - 3 - 

Benton County.  She said that no comments were received and Public Works recommended 
approval of the franchised based upon the listed requirements.   
 
As there was no public testimony, the public hearing was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the application for franchise for B.C. 
Water Company, LLC as presented with the listed conditions.  Commissioner Delvin seconded 
and upon vote, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
Public Hearing - Short Plat Vacation – 13-01 
 
RJ Lott said they received an application from John Sullens requesting two easements be vacated 
off the face of Lot 1 of the Short Plat.   
 
He said that based upon the comments received, the Planning Department recommended 
approval of the vacation of the easements.   
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the vacation of the easements described in 
paragraph 2 of the memo and located on Lot 1 of Short Plat 3249.  Additionally, it was 
conditioned upon the applicant recording a document that relinquished that portion of the 
underlying 30-foot ingress-egress, road and utility easement that lies within the south 458.3 feet 
of the East 30 feet of Lot 1 of Short Plat 3249 and the document be recorded within one year of 
the date of approval or this approval would be null and void.  Commissioner Delvin seconded 
and upon vote, the motion carried.   
 
Public Hearing – Ordinance Amendment – BCC 7.16.140 – Outdoor Concerts 
 
Ryan Brown said his office received a letter from the Second Amendment Foundation 
questioning the legality of BCC 7.16.140 that was adopted in 1975 that stated it was unlawful for 
any person other than law enforcement officers to carry a firearm at an outdoor music festival.  
Under current law, Washington law regarding the possession of firearms preempted any local 
law regarding the possession of firearms at music festivals.  He said the proposed ordinance 
would repeal the section relating to firearms at an outdoor music festival and it was his opinion 
the County no longer had the authority to ban firearms at music festivals.   
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to adopt the resolution and ordinance to amend the 
Benton County Code to repeal BCC 7.16.140 relating to the possession of firearms at outdoor 
music festivals as defined by BCC 7.16.020.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the 
motion carried unanimously.   
 



 - 4 - 

Discussion of S. 38th Avenue – West Richland 
 
Steve Becken reviewed the report dated February 13, 2013 and said when constructed the right 
of way for S. 38th Avenue in Willamette Heights was obtained via the easements retained on 
patents for each parcel.  When the US Government sold the two tracts, they held out a 33 foot 
easement on one to four sides of each parcel.  In 1986 when Benton County began proceedings 
to vacate of the easements (prior to BLM informing them they did not have authority to vacate), 
the PA’s office stated that although the patents accepted a 33-foot easement for road and utility 
purposes, there was no indication Benton County had ever accepted the easements for road 
purposes.   Therefore, they were considered private access easements until such time as Benton 
County accepted the easement for road purposes.   
 
He said he spoke with BFCOG regarding having the road classified and it was suggested they 
apply for an Urban Collector classification, which could not be done until the County had 
ownership.  Per past practices, the County would not accept a gravel road into the system until it 
was brought up to at least minimum county standard of being a paved road.  He said they had a 
rough estimate of $950,000 to construct S. 38th Avenue and had not had any survey work done 
and there were not any funds available for this project.  One thought was to move around CRIMP 
funds, but if they moved CRIMP monies around, it would jeopardize $6 million in RAP and STP 
funds for Nine Canyon Road and Travis Road.   
 
West Richland has stated that if the County constructed 38th, they would pursue an LID on the 
north end.  If that failed, the north end was in their Six-Year Road Program but with no 
construction date set.  If the County constructed the road, it would be connecting to private 
gravel roads on both the north and south ends with no assurance either would be constructed. 
 
If the County constructed 38th Ave. with county money, West Richland proposed the County and 
City work together to have 38th designated as a collector arterial and then apply for STP-U funds 
in the Fall of 2013 for construction money; the County would need to put up a match of 
$100,000 to $150,000 if successful in obtaining the funds.   
 
Mr. Becken said the first step would be to determine if the County wanted to construct this as a 
County project with County funds.   
 
Commissioner Beaver said he wanted designate this as a County project and he felt the situation 
was created by the federal government.  Commissioner Delvin said he felt they could start there 
but the citizens needed to know construction was not going to happen right now.   
 
Chairman Small said the County just dealt with a with a $2.7 million shortfall and there were 
shortfalls in the State and United States Government.  He said they were all for progress and 
knew about the issues with the road but they did not have the capacity with funding.  However, 
they were willing to look at this and take a look at reclassifying and try to get it in the road plan 
and still try to balance the remainder of the needs and the road system.   
 



 - 5 - 

Emergency Services System Discussion  
 
Loretta Smith Kelty and Ryan Brown updated the Board and provided a draft letter addressed to 
the Cities of Pasco, Kennewick, Richland, and Franklin County.   
Ryan Brown said they had a telephone conference call with Robert Ezelle from the State 
Emergency Management Division to get a perspective on what wa going on.   
 
Robert Ezelle and Bill Peters, WA Military Department, Emergency Management Division 
discussed the issue with the Board.  Mr. Ezelle said they had no preconceived notions whether a 
regionalization was in the County’s best interest or not.  He said they were here to provide 
support.  He said they provided statewide services that benefitted all the counties for training and 
also provided financial support for smaller counties; they also helped counties modernize 
systems so they were compatible as the nation moved forward.  He said they had some success 
with regionalization for a few other counties (Chelan and Douglas) and (Whitman and Asotin) 
and assisted with that in terms of doing the studies.   
 
It was stated they were approached by Franklin County to see if they could assist Benton & 
Franklin Counties (neither qualified for financial assistance), but they saw some benefit and said 
they could help with the studies.  Mr. Ezelle said the offer was still there and they were willing to 
assist the counties; additionally, they have rewritten their policy so that money could be used for 
a study or project manager or a combination of both (set to be approved).  He said there not any 
deadlines but it was up to the counties and cities what they wanted to see.  He mentioned that  
as part of the cost benefit analysis they would want to see savings the State would receive, 
although there might not be a huge savings to the State since Benton & Franklin Counties did not 
qualify for financial assistance at this point.  Additionally, they strictly dealt with the telephone 
portion of the system.   
 
Commissioner Delvin talked about his concern that the costs were going to be spread to the radio 
system.  It was stated that could be part of the deliverables in the study.  Mr. Ezelle said the 
study should be a cooperative endeavor to make sure it addressed the needs of all the 
participants.  He said they could assist in the RFP process but the counties would pay the 
consultant and the State would reimburse for those costs.  He added they were not pushing 
regionalization but were here to support an initiative and have agreed to provide funding for a 
regionalization study or project manager.    
 
The Board talked about the previous study that was completed by e-Gov and that it could be 
expanded on what was already completed.  Additionally the State would contract with the 
counties for the MOU and did not typically do that at the city level. 
 
The Board agreed it would continue this discussion during the special meeting scheduled for the 
next day and try to agree on some deliverables for the study.   
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Jerome asked for an update on the RTPO issue.  Commissioner Beaver said that Benton County 
lost $409,000 from this round in a vote; Mr. Becken also attended the meeting (representing the 



 - 6 - 

City of Prosser).  He said there were agencies within the county that voted against funds for 
Benton County and so they were not happy with them.   
 
Additionally, Commissioner Beaver said that he and Adam Fyall met with Doc Hastings 
regarding Hanford Communities.  Mr. Fyall added that Doc Hastings remained optimistic 
regarding the B Reactor and recent news about leaking tanks gave more momentum; he was also 
in favor of moving forward on Yucca Mountain and believed it was the law of the land to be the 
national depository.  Commissioner said he also attended a Health Board meeting.   
 
Commissioner Small said he attended the Health Board meeting and also attended a Red 
Mountain function with new Senator Sharon Brown and that they talked about transportation 
issues.   
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 01/15/2013 
Warrant #: 235194-235210 
Direct Deposit #: 80986-81185 
Total all funds: $106,393.19 
 
Check Date:  02/15/2013 
Warrant #: 74912-75073 
Total all funds: $500,098.43 
 
Check Date:  02/15/2013 
Warrant #: 235311-235327 
Direct Deposit #: 81836-82033 
Total all funds: $105,116.62 
 
Check Date:  02/15/2013 
Taxes #: 10113024 
Total all funds: $34,671.37 
 
Check Date:  02/22/2013 
Warrant #: 75074-75535 
Warrant #: 75818-76038 
Taxes #: 01010213.05010213.010102135 
Total all funds: $941,671.47 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
2013-145: Collective Bargaining Agreement w/WA State Council of County & City 

Employees, Representing Appraisers  



 - 7 - 

2013-146: Collective Bargaining Agreement w/WA St Council of County & City 
Employees, Representing Crisis Response Unit  

2013-147: Collective Bargaining Agreement w/Teamsters Local No. 839, Representing 
Sheriff’s Office Clerical  

2013-148: Collective Bargaining Agreement w/American Federation of State, County & 
Municipal Employees, Representing Courthouse Union  

2013-149: Agreement w/Ciber, Inc. for Support of “Crimes” Software 
2013-150: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 115  
2013-151: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0131-101, Dept. 000 
2013-152: Contract w/River City Environmental, Inc. to Clean Grease Trap @ the Jail  
2013-153: Payment Authorization to Moon Security for Prosecuting Attorney’s Office 

Remodel Project 
2013-154: Agreement w/Catholic Family & Child Service for 10-Yr Homeless Housing Plan 

Goals   
2013-155: Renewal of Message Archiver Subscription from GovConnection 
2013-156: Contract w/Tri-Cities Chaplaincy for Counseling Services   
2013-157: Contract w/Connections Consulting for Interpreter Services  
2013-158: Contract w/J Azure for Attorney Services 
2013-159: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171  
2013-160: Contract Amendment w/D Anderson for Civil Defense Representation  
2013-161: Contract Amendment w/K Moreno for Civil Defense Representation 
2013-162: Contract Amendment w/J Paulsen for Civil Defense Representation  
2013-163: Contract Amendment w/D Campbell for Civil Defense Representation  
2013-164: Purchase from Legacy Ford & Northend Truck Equipment Co. for Ford Cab & 

Flatbed    
2013-165: Purchase from Trailer Town for Flatbed Tilt Trailers 
2013-166: Purchase from Rowand Machinery Co. for John Deere Front Loader   
2013-167: Denial of the Formation of County Road Improvement District No. 23 
2013-168: Equipment Maintenance Agreement w/Prosser Fire District #3 
2013-169: Lease Agreement w/Benton County Mosquito Control District  
2013-170: Memorandum of Agreement w/Washington State University Extension 
2013-171: Transfer of funds – Current Expense – Dept. 120 
2013-172: Ordinance Amendment Relating to Outdoor Concerts – Repealing the section 

Relating to Prohibition of Firearms at an Outdoor Music Festival 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:09 
a.m.   
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



Rc~ohuion i\uthonzing Surplus, Donation anJior 
Scrap or outdated cameras. ~cllphonts and D1ctaptwnc· 

RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY POLICY, RE: SURPLUS OF PERSONAL PROPERTY IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH RESOLUTION 07-752 

WHEREAS, The Benton County Auditor is the Personal Property Manager and maintains an updated inventory 
listing of county Personal Property; and, 

WHEREAS, the Personal Property Manager and various Departments have determined that the personal property 
on attachment A is not desired by any other county department or office; and, 

WHEREAS, all the items listed have no value to the county, are outmoded and obsolete due to advanced 
technologies; and, 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager that this potential surplus property is not 
desired by any county agency and should be declared surplus; and, 

WHERE AS, the Board finds it to be in the best interest of the citizens of Benton County to surplus antiquated and 
obsolete personal property; NOW, THEREFORE 

BE IT RESOLVED, that, based on the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager, all items included on 
the attachment are hereby surplused and to be disposed of as indicated in the attached. 

Dated this ____ day of _________ , 20 _ _ . 

Attest: ______________________ _ 
Clerk of the Board 

I of3 

Chairman of the Board 

Member 

Member 

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County, 
Washington 

Prepared by P. Powell 

mf
Text Box
a. Surplus of Personal Property



Resolution Authonzntg Surplus, D<'llation ~nd ior 

Scrap or outdate-d cameras. cdlphoncs and Dtctaphonc-

ld tag# Description 

001514 Camera, digital 
01526 Camera, 35mm 
00954 Camera 
12202 Camera, windows 95 
11437 Movie, camera 
01130 Camera 
13650 Camera 
13652 Camera 
13658 Camera 
13653 Camera 
13654 Camera 
001647 Camera 
17753 Camera 
08085 Camera 
No tag Camera 
No tag Dictaphone 
No tag Cell Phone 
No tag Cell Phone 
No tag Cell Phone 
No tag Cell Phone 
No tag Cell Phone 
No tag Cell Phone 

Disposition: 

1. Donate to Women's' Shelter 

Make/model 

Sony, Mavica 1999 
Minolta, X-370 
Ricoh, FF9d 
Ricoh, ROC 300 
Sony, Mavica 
Pen tax, 90-WR 
Kodak, DC280 
Kodak, DC280 
Kodak, DC280 
Kodak, DC280 
Kodak, DC280 
Minolta, E323 
Canon SO 1200 IS, broken 
Polaroid, Spectra 
Polaroid, 1996 
Pitney Bowes, cassette 
Motorola, V540 
Motorola, V540 
Samsung, SGH-x497 
Motorola, V540 
Nokia, 6126 
Motorola, V365 

2. Dispose@ next Central Services surplus sale. If not sold , scrap 

3. Scrap 

2 of3 

Dispositi 
on 

2 
2 
3 
3 
3 
3 
2 
2 
2 
2 
2 
2 
3 
2 
2 
3 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 



mf
Text Box
b. Contract w/DB Secure Shred, LLC for Document Destruction Services







 

 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

     
  

                                          
March 5, 2013 

 

 
Mr. Gary Crutchfield 
Pasco City Manager 
525 N. Third Ave., Third Floor 
Pasco, WA  99301 
 
Ms. Cindy Johnson 
Richland City Manager 
P.O. Box 190 
Richland, WA  99352 
 
Ms. Marie Mosley 
Kennewick City Manager 
P.O. Box 6108 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
 
Mr. Brad Peck 
Franklin County Commissioner 
1016 N. 4th 
Pasco, WA 99301 
 
Dear Ladies/Gentlemen: 

 

The Board of Benton County Commissioners (BOCC) met on February 4, 2013 to further 

review  the concept of  regionalizing emergency services,  including whether a merger  is  in  the 

County’s best interest. 

 

The  BOCC  approved  a Memorandum  of  Understanding  (MOU)  between  Benton  and 

Franklin  Counties  and  the  Washington  State  Military  Department  (Resolution  11‐785)  in 

December 2011, authorizing  the use of  state  funds  to complete a “study of  the  feasibility of 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mf
Text Box
c. Letter to Cities & Franklin County Regarding Merging E911 Services



 

 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

entering into an interlocal cooperation agreement to consolidate their respective E911 systems 

to determine if it is the best interest of the counties and their residents”.  Twelve months later, 

an  interlocal cooperation agreement was submitted to Benton County that stated  its purpose

was  the  creation  of  a  regionalized  emergency  communications  system.    The  interlocal 

specifically  included milestone  language  stating  accomplishments,  such  as  an operational Bi‐

County  Public  Safety  Answering  Point  (PSAP)  and  the  complete migration  to  a  regionalized 

system by 2014.  On February 12, 2013, Franklin County Commissioner Peck presented a slightly 

revised draft  interlocal  cooperation agreement  to  the BOCC  that  included  the  same purpose 

and milestone language. 

 

On February 26, 2013, the BOCC met with Washington Military Department Emergency 

Management Division personnel  and discussed  the MOU  that was  approved by  Franklin  and 

Benton Counties  in December of 2011.    It was determined this MOU was never signed by the 

State as the work scope language was changed from a “feasibility study of a merger” to “hiring 

a program manager  to  implement a merger”.   Consequently, BOCC  is not willing  to  sign  the 

interlocal cooperation agreement proposed on February 12, 2013. 

 

Benton County  is still  interested  in exploring the concept of a complete migration to a 

regionalized system, but there are numerous important details that must be researched before 

a decision of this magnitude can be made.  One way to obtain these details would require the 

County signing another MOU with the State, similar to the MOU signed in 2011.  Currently, the 

County is amenable to this request. 

 

Regardless  of  how  the  information  is  obtained,  one  detail we  think must  be  studied 

would be  the potential  financial benefits and  cost  savings gathered as a  result of  the  study.  

Also, we believe that before any complete migration to a regionalized system and before any 

taxpayer funds are spent, it would be prudent for the parties to discuss the terms of a buy‐in by 

the  City  of  Pasco  and  Franklin  County.  Benton  County  and  its  partners  have  spent 

approximately $10 million of taxpayer funds, along with another $10 million in grant funding to 

acquire and operate a digitalized 800 MHZ system. The BOCC also understands that the City of 

Pasco and Franklin County do not have such a system, as they are currently operating on a VHF 

system.  Therefore,  one  of  the  items  that  need  to  be  discussed  is  how  Benton 

County/Kennewick/Richland  will  be  compensated  or  reimbursed  for  this  capital  outlay.  

Another item of interest would be the long term cost savings to the residents and the partners.



 

 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

We believe that Benton and Franklin Counties should sign another MOU with the State 

to “study the feasibility to consolidate respective E911 systems”.  It would be helpful if the City 

of Pasco and Franklin County, along with the cities of Kennewick and Richland, consolidate the 

details of what should be studied, and then identify an individual to coordinate this information 

with the State. 

 

Finally, we understand  that  the Pasco Police Department has  current  safety  concerns 

related  to  emergency  service  communications.  As  such,  a  letter  in  support  of  the  potential 

lease of emergency services to the Department is forthcoming. 

 

               

Sincerely, 

               

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

              _______________________________ 

              Shon Small, Chairman 

 

              _______________________________ 

              Jerome Delvin 

 

              _______________________________ 

              Jim Beaver 

 
 
 



 

 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

     
  

                                          
March 5, 2013 

 
 
 
Ms. Cindy Johnson 
Richland City Manager 
P.O. Box 190 
Richland, WA  99352 
 
Ms. Marie Mosley 
Kennewick City Manager 
P.O. Box 6108 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
 
Dear Benton County Emergency Services Management: 

 

  We  understand  that  the  Pasco  Police Department  (PPD)  has  current  safety  concerns 

related  to  emergency  service  communications.   To  our  knowledge,  PPD  uses  VHF  radio 

technology while Benton County uses 800 MHZ radio technology.   Currently, the only method 

of  communicating between  the  two  systems  is  through a  Statewide  simplex  channel  (LERN); 

however,  it  has  been  inadequate  for meeting  operational  needs.    As  such,  Benton  County 

supports the leasing of emergency service communications infrastructure to the PPD as Benton 

and Franklin Counties consider signing another MOU with the State to “study the feasibility to 

consolidate respective E911 systems” and progresses towards a potential merger. 

   

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mf
Text Box
d. Letter of Support to Benton County Emergency Services



 

 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

Sincerely, 

               

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

              _______________________________ 

              Shon Small, Chairman 

 

              _______________________________ 

              Jerome Delvin 

 

              _______________________________ 

              Jim Beaver 

 
 
 



mf
Text Box
e. Purchase Authorization from Bargreen Ellingson for Convection Steamer





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  03/05/2013        
Subject: __________ 
Prepared by:       C. McKenzie        
Reviewed by: __________        

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  X 
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            X  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Per resolution 11-801, the Board entered into a service contract with Schindler Elevator Corporation for 
complete elevator maintenance and repair services for the period January 1, 2012 through December 31, 
2012 in an amount not to exceed $35,000.   
  
SUMMARY 
 
On December 29, 2012 a service call was made to Schindler Elevator for an elevator that was not 
operational in the jail and repairs were required in the amount of $1,936.53, causing the contract to 
exceed its limit by $1,784.44.    
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the resolution authorizing payment to Schindler Elevator Corporation in the amount of $1,936.53.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
$1,936.53 (including WSST) 
Current Expense, Facilities (Jail) Section 
No supplement required 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda 

mf
Text Box
f. Payment Authorization to Schindler Elevator Corporation for Elevator Repair Services



cc: Auditor  C. McKenzie  

RESOLUTION 
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO SCHINDLER ELEVATOR CORPORATION 
FOR PROVIDING ELEVATOR REPAIR SERVICES FOR ELEVATOR IN THE BENTON COUNTY 
JAIL  
 
WHEREAS, per resolution 11-801, the Board of Benton County Commissioners entered into a service contract 
with Schindler Elevator Corporation for complete elevator maintenance and repair services for the period 
January 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 in an amount not to exceed $35,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, in November a balance of $188.09 remained on the contract limit and it was anticipated that 
additional services would not be needed for the remainder of the calendar year; and  
 
WHEREAS, on Saturday, December 29, 2012 service was requested by the Facilities Manager to repair an 
elevator in the Benton County Jail that was off track and not operational and the charges for this elevator 
repair service totaled $1,936.53, thereby exceeding the contract limit by $1,748.44; and  
 
WHEREAS, Schindler Elevator Corporation has filed the appropriate prevailing wage intent and affidavit with 
the Department of Labor & Industries for this service; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Facilities Manager approved this service and agrees with the charges incurred and 
recommends payment in the amount of $1,936.53;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 
Washington hereby authorizes payment to Schindler Elevator Corporation for Invoice 7151727887 in the 
amount of $1,936.53 including WSST for services performed on the elevator in the Benton County Jail.    
 
Dated this    day of    , 2013.  
 
         
             Chairman of the Board 
 
         _______________________________________ 
            Member 
 
       ________________________________________ 
            Member 
Attest:  
                       Clerk of the Board 
 
  



mf
Text Box
g. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101; Dept. 000







mf
Text Box
h. Interagency Agreement w/Administrative Office of the Courts for Guest Trainer Services











mf
Text Box
i. Contract w/Sierra Electric, Inc. for Electrical Repair Services











mf
Text Box
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138





mf
Text Box
k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171





mf
Text Box
l. Denial of County Claim CC2012-17



cc: Personnel 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF DENYING COUNTY CLAIM CC2012-17 
 
WHEREAS, The Benton County Risk Manager and Civil Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 
have reviewed CC2012-17; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Board of Benton County Commissioners has reviewed the 
recommendation of the Risk Manager and Civil Deputy Prosecuting Attorney and finds 
said recommendation to be justified by the facts present; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED The Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby denies County Claim 
CC2012-17. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this……….day of…………, 20…….. 
 

_________________________________ 
Chairman of the Board 

 
_________________________________ 

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

_________________________________ 
Member 

 
Attest:……………………………………….. 
 Clerk of the Board 
 



 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
Meeting Date: 3-05-13 
Subject:  Service Agreement  
Prepared by: L. Wingfield 
Reviewed by:     M. Wenner 
        

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract             
Pass Resolution  X          
Pass Ordinance              
Pass Motion              
Other            

 
 
Consent Agenda  X     
Public Hearing              
1st Discussion             
2nd Discussion              
Other              

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
With recent events around the Country, criminal record checks are more important than ever to help in the 
selection process of hiring safe, honest, and reliable people, while deterring individuals with criminal records 
from joining our organization.  Benton County’s Personnel Resources Department wants to take a proactive 
approach to try and minimize our risk when it comes to the safety and security of Benton County’s assets, 
employees, and the public.  Currently Benton County Personnel Resources Department currently uses the 
Washington State Patrol to run an employment background check on new employees but this check only 
looks at Washington history.  With the changing economy, many people are moving to find employment.  
This means that we are and could employ people who have not been residents of Washington.  Sterling 
Infosystems, Inc. is able to provide Benton County with background information that is gathered from over 
3500 institutions, minimizing our risk of hiring individuals with a criminal background history. 
 
Sterling Infosystems, Inc. was the chosen vendor because they did not have a startup fee, had a flat rate per 
screen, and will soon be integrating with NeoGov, Benton County’s online application and tracking system. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Same as above 
 
 RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve Resolution and sign attached Agreement 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Benton County Standard Criminal Package for $28.00 per screen including Social Security Trace, Address 
History Locator and Name Alias Listing, ArrestDirect Candidate Criminal Locator, and County Criminal 
Search (7 years all counties from ss tract).  No supplemental is required. 
 
Benton County Personnel Resources Department anticipates, based on past experience, running 350 
background checks per year.  With this estimate of 350 checks at $28.00 per check, the estimated yearly 
cost will be $9,800.00 
 
 
 
 

mf
Text Box
m. Contract w/Sterling Infosystem, Inc. for Employment Screenings



 cc: Personnel, Auditor, BCSO                                                                                                                  Prepared by: L. Wingfield 
    

 

RESOLUTION 
  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING STERLING INFOSYSTEMS, INC. A PERSONAL SERVICE 
CONTRACT FOR EMPLOYMENT SCREENING/BACKGROUND CHECKS 
 
WHEREAS, per resolution 2012-677, “…for all contracts for non-public works services the county need 
not advertise or follow a formal competitive bidding procedure, but may instead evaluate and utilize the 
procedures it deems best under the individual circumstances in order to obtain services of the highest 
quality at the lowest cost; and  
 
WHEREAS, Benton County runs employment background checks on all employees to ensure the safety 
and security of Benton County’s assets, employees, and the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sterling Infosystems, Inc. will take responsibility for performing services in a timely and 
accurate manner consistent with that of a professional employment screening agency; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Resources Department recommends entering into a contract from March 5, 
2013 for the term of 36 months, thereafter, remain in effect for a series of like periods unless either party 
notifies the other party of its wishes to terminate the Agreement at least 30 days prior to the expiration of 
the initial or subsequent term NOW, THEREFORE  

 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, the 
Board concurs with the Personnel Resources Department’s recommendation and hereby awards the 
Service Agreement to Sterling Infosystems, Inc. in the amount of $28.00 per screen; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairman of the Board of Benton County Commissioners is 
authorized to sign the attached Agreement; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of the agreement commences March 5, 2013 with a term of 36 
months, thereafter, remain in effect for a series of like periods unless either party notifies the other party 
of its wishes to terminate the Agreement at least 30 days prior to the expiration of the initial or subsequent 
term. 
 
 
Dated this __________________ day of ________________, 2013. 
 
 
 

________________________                
Chairman of the Board 

 
 

________________________ 
Member 

 
 

________________________ 
Member  

               
Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board 



mf
Text Box
n. Authorization to Proceed w/Bid Process for Purchase of Metal TrafficSigns













mf
Text Box
o. Authorization to Proceed w/Bid Process for Purchase of Refined Petroleum Projects













mf
Text Box
p. Purchase Authorization from Crop Production Services for Herbicide Materials







mf
Text Box
q. Payment Authorization to Lesco Electrical for Repairs @ Maintenance Yard



mf
Text Box
r. Rental Authorization from Arrow Construction Supply of Crack Seal Machine



mf
Text Box
s. Interlocal Cooperative Agreement w/City of Prosser for Bituminous Surface Treatment





mf
Text Box
t. Bid Award to Bob Barker Company, Inc. for Purchase of Inmate Supplies ~ CB-13-01





mf
Text Box
u. Bid Award to Interline Brands, Inc. dba/Amsan Yakima for Purchase of Jail ChemicalSupplies ~ CB-13-02





mf
Text Box
v. Bid Award to Crown Paper & Janitorial, Inc. for Purchase of Paper & Glove Supplies ~ CB-13-03





mf
Text Box
w. Bid Award to Blumenthal Uniforms and Equip. Co., Inc. for Purchase of EmployeeUniforms - Class A and Other Related Items ~ CB-13-04





mf
Text Box
x. Bid Award to 911 Supply, LLC for Purchase of Employee Uniforms BDU/Blauer ~ CB-13-05




	Agenda Minutes 022613
	Approval of Minutes
	Commissioner Assignment Update
	Vouchers


	CA - Auditor a
	CA - Commissioners b
	CA - Commissioners c
	CA - Commissioners d
	CA - Facilties e
	CA - Facilties f
	Agenda action sheet - Payment to Schindler
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY
	MOTION

	Resolution - Payment to Schindler Elevator

	CA - Fairgrounds g
	CA - Juvenile h
	CA - Juvenile i
	CA - Juvenile j
	CA - Juvenile k
	CA - Personnel l
	RESOLUTION
	BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:
	IN THE MATTER OF DENYING COUNTY CLAIM CC2012-17
	Dated this……….day of…………, 20……..
	Chairman of the Board
	Chairman Pro-Tem
	Member
	Attest:………………………………………..
	Clerk of the Board

	CA - Personnel m
	Resolution.pdf
	RESOLUTION
	BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON


	AGENDA.Sterling Service Agreement.pdf
	SUMMARY
	FISCAL IMPACT



	CA - Public Works n
	CA - Public Works o
	CA - Public Works p
	CA - Public Works q
	CA - Public Works r
	CA - Public Works s
	CA - Sheriff t
	CA - Sheriff u
	CB 13-02 Notice of the Lowest Responsible Bidder 2
	CB 13-02 Notice of the Lowest Responsible Bidder
	CB 13-02 1
	CB 13-02 2
	CB 13-02 3
	CB 13-02 4
	CB 13-02 5


	CA - Sheriff v
	CA - Sheriff w
	CA - Sheriff x
	030513.pdf
	REVISED
	AGENDA
	Regular Board Meeting
	Tuesday, March 5, 2013
	Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA




